
 

 
Cambridge City Council 

 

 

 
 

 
i 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

To:   Scrutiny Sub Committee Members: Councillors Reid (Chair), Saunders 
(Vice-Chair), Blencowe, Brierley, Marchant-Daisley and Price 
 
Alternates : Councillors Blackhurst and Herbert 
 
Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change: Councillor Ward  
 
 
 

Despatched: Monday, 28 October 2013 

  

Date: Tuesday, 5 November 2013 

Time: 4.30 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 & 2 - Guildhall 

Contact:  James Goddard Direct Dial:  01223 457013 
 

AGENDA 

1    APOLOGIES   
 

 To receive any apologies for absence.   

2    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

 Members are asked to declare at this stage any interests, which they may 
have in any of the following items on the agenda. If any member is unsure 
whether or not they should declare an interest on a particular matter, they 
are requested to seek advice from the Head of Legal Services before the 
meeting. 

3    MINUTES  (Pages 7 - 14) 
 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting on 10 September 2013. (Pages 7 - 
14) 

4   PUBLIC QUESTIONS   

5   STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (Pages 15 - 36) 

Public Document Pack



 

 
ii 

 
 

Information for the Public 
 

 
 

Location 
 
 
 
 

The meeting is in the Guildhall on the Market Square 
(CB2 3QJ).  
 
Between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. the building is accessible 
via Peas Hill, Guildhall Street and the Market Square 
entrances. 
 
After 5 p.m. access is via the Peas Hill entrance. 
 
All the meeting rooms (Committee Room 1, 
Committee 2 and the Council Chamber) are on the 
first floor, and are accessible via lifts or stairs.  
 

 
 
 

Public 
Participation 

Some meetings may have parts that will be closed to 
the public, but the reasons for excluding the press 
and public will be given.  
 
Most meetings have an opportunity for members of 
the public to ask questions or make statements.  
 
To ask a question or make a statement please notify 
the Committee Manager (details listed on the front of 
the agenda) prior to the deadline.  
 

• For questions and/or statements regarding 
items on the published agenda, the deadline is 
the start of the meeting. 

 

• For questions and/or statements regarding 
items NOT on the published agenda, the 
deadline is 10 a.m. the day before the meeting.  

 
 
Speaking on Planning Applications or Licensing 
Hearings is subject to other rules. Guidance for 
speaking on these issues can be obtained from 
Democratic Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.  
 
Further information about speaking at a City Council 

 



 

 
iii 

meeting can be found at; 
 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/speaking-at-
committee-meetings  
 
Cambridge City Council would value your assistance 
in improving the public speaking process of 
committee meetings. If you any have any feedback 
please contact Democratic Services on 01223 457013 
or democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 
 

Filming, 
recording 
and 
photography 

The Council is committed to being open and 
transparent in the way it conducts its decision-making.  
Recording is permitted at council meetings, which are 
open to the public. The Council understands that 
some members of the public attending its meetings 
may not wish to be recorded. The Chair of the 
meeting will facilitate by ensuring that any such 
request not to be recorded is respected by those 
doing the recording.  
 
Full details of the City Council’s protocol on 
audio/visual recording and photography at meetings 
can be accessed via: 
 
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx
?NAME=SD1057&ID=1057&RPID=42096147&sch=d
oc&cat=13203&path=13020%2c13203  
 

 

Fire Alarm In the event of the fire alarm sounding please follow 
the instructions of Cambridge City Council staff.  
 

 

Facilities for 
disabled 
people 

Level access to the Guildhall is via Peas Hill. 
 
A loop system is available in Committee Room 1, 
Committee Room 2 and the Council Chamber.  
 
Accessible toilets are available on the ground and first 
floor. 
 
Meeting papers are available in large print and other 
formats on request prior to the meeting. 
 
For further assistance please contact Democratic 

 



 

 
iv 

Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 

Queries on 
reports 

If you have a question or query regarding a committee 
report please contact the officer listed at the end of 
relevant report or Democratic Services on 01223 
457013 or democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 
 

 

General 
Information 

Information regarding committees, councilors and the 
democratic process is available at 
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/  
 
 

 

 
 
 
 



����������	
����

���	���

��������		��
 ��

���

 ��������
��

��	�����
����












�


����������	
����
�
��	���
����
����		��
 ��

��	�����
����


 � ��

�
! �!
��



�������"

�����������
#���
$�%���&�

�������
$'�����%���&�
(�����)��
(��������

*���%��	��������
���
�����



+,���	���
����������
-��
�������.
���
�����	�
�%��.�"
����������
/���




���������


0���
�-
�������.

�������"
��	��
����

���������
�������.
������
1--����"
2�����
3�����	�/�������.�

�����		��
*���.��"
2����
3������






���
	��
�������	���
��
	��

���
��





� ! "!����

 �#$%$&���



4�
�����.���
)���
�������� 


� !'(!����

 ���%)�)��$��
$�
��������




�)*�
 ���*
 ��������


����������

/���


��������

�
 ��������"
 0��
 ��������
 ��5��
 	%�

���	���
 ���	��
 -��
 ��.%	��.
 ����.

���	�����
 ��
 �������.��%���
 ����	�

�������


�����������

#���
 6


�������


��������

�
 ��������"
 *�����
 �-
 �������.�

������.
������.�





� !'�!����

 ���+���



�%�
����	��
�-
	%�
�7
*��
����
$���	�
�
6
�&
���
7
2���
����
���	��.�
)���

��������
���
��.���
��
�
������	
������ 


� !',!����

 �+-%��
.+����$��




Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3

Page 5



����������	
����

���	���

��������		����

���
 ��������
��

��	�����
����












�


4�
������
8���	����
)���
��5�� 


� !' !����

 ��$#$��/
���#$���
�$
�$+�0

)*-��/&��0���
�$�)%
�%)�

1��$#$��/
�+-*����$�

$��+%�)��$�
)�/

$**+���2
����)���+��+��
��32

�
���%�*��)�2
��)��

0)�&��&
��0�/+%�

$��+%�)��$�4



�)����
�$�
������$�

�%�
��	�
��������

��	%
�������.��%���
���	���	
�������
���
�������.��%���

����	�
�������
%���
�
%��	���
�-
9���	
)��5��.
��
�������.
��		����
���	��������

��
 �������5��. 
 :�
 ���	
 �-
 	%�
 ��	�
 	�
 �������	��
 	%�
 	%���
 ��������
 %���

)��5��
 ���������	�����
 ���
 ��
 ��������
 ��
 ��)
 �����
 �����
 ���
 �
 	�������	

�	��	�.�
 -��
 	%�
 �������.�
 ���� 
 �%��
 �������%
 )���
 ������
 	%�	
 ������
��������
������
���
�������	
)����
��		���
���
���������
��
�
������	��	
���

9��������
������ 



�%�
��	�
�������
������%��
 �	�
;����
����
��
�7
2���
���� 
�%�
�������	
 ��

��	
 -��
 ������	�	���
 ��	��
 ��
 
��	�����
 ���� 
 
��	%
 �������.��%���
 ���	���	

�������
 ������%��
 	%���
 ;����
 ����
 ��
 �7
 2��� 
 �%���
 ������	�	���
 ����
 -���

	%���.%
	�
��
1�	����
����



<�
���������.
	%�

��	%
�������.��%���
;����
�����
	%�
5��
�����
-��
	%�
��	�

�������
 ��
 	�
 ������
 	%�	
 
��	%
 �������.��%���=�
 ��������
 ���
 ���.���
 )�	%

	%���
 ��
 	%�
 ��	�
 �������=�
 �����
 ����
 ���
 	%�
 �������%��.
 ����������	

�	��	�.�
	%�	
	%�
��������
%���
�.����
��
��-���	��
��
	%�
���� 



:���	��������
 
��	%
 �������.��%���
 ���	���	
 �������
 ����
 ������
 	%���

�������	�
 <�-���	���	���
 ;���
 �����������
 ���-	
 �%��.��.
 
�%����� 
 �%��

�����	
 ��������
 	%�
 ��..��	��
 ��������	�	����
 	�
 	%�
 
��	%
 �������.��%���

;����
����
���
	%���
�������	�
<�-���	���	���
;���
�����������
���-	
�%��.��.


�%�����
 -��
 �.������	
 ��
 *������ 
 1���
 -���������
 	%���
 ��������	�	����

)���
��
�����		��
 	�

��	%
�������.��%���
���	���	
�������
 ��
�������
�-
 	%�

	)�
������	�	���
���������
�-
��
1�	����
����
���
��

��	�����
���� 



������$�
$�
�5��+��3�

$+���%%$�
�$�
�%)����&
)�/

%�*)��

0)�&�


� 
 :.����
 	%�
 ��������	�	����
 	�
 	%�
 
��	%
 �������.��%���
 ;����
 ����
 >

��������

���������
��	
��	
 ��

��	���
?
�-
 	%�
 �����	
���
 	%�	
 	%���

���
 �����		��
 	�
 
��	%
 �������.��%���
 ���	���	
 �������
 ��
 �������.�

��	�
�������=�
-�����
��������
	�
	%�
������	�	��� 


�� 
 :.����
 	%�
 ��������	�	����
 	�
 	%�
 
��	%
 �������.��%���
 �������	�

<�-���	���	���
;���
�����������
���-	
�%��.��.

�%�����
��	
��	

��	���

7
 �-
 	%�
 1--����=�
 �����	
 ���
 	%�	
 	%���
 ���
 �����		��
 	�
 
��	%


Page 6



����������	
����

���	���

��������		����

���
 ��������
��

��	�����
����












�


�������.��%���
 ���	���	
 �������
 ��
 �������.�
 ��	�
 �������=�
 -�����

��������
	�
	%�
������	�	��� 




��)�$�
�$�
�0�
������$�

:�
��	
��	
��
	%�
1--����=�
�����	 



��2
�%����)��3�
�#��$��

$���/���/
)�/
��6����/

4�	
���������� 



���+���2

$���/��)��$��

�%�
�����		��
��������
�
�����	
-���
	%�
���������
�������.
1--���� 



�%�
�����		��
����
	%�
-����)��.
������	�
��
��������
	�
	%�
�����	"




� 
 
�����	��
	%�
����������	����
��
����������
���9��	
	�
�����-���	����
��	

��	
����) 


�� 
 ������
 

��
 1��%���
 ���5"
 1��%���
 ���5
 �����
 �
 %�.%
 8����	�
 �������.

	%�	
 ��
���������	�
 -��
 	%�
 ����	��� 
:�5��
 -��
 	%�
 	���
 @�������5=
 	�
��

����
������.�� 




<�
 ��������
 	�
 *������=
 8���	����
 	%�
 0���
 �-
 �������.
 
�������
 ���

���������
�������.
1--����
����
	%�
-����)��."



������

�!
���������
�-
4�)
2���
���
0����




� 
 �%�
 
��	%
 �������.��%���
 ���	���	
 �������
 $
���&
 
	��	�.��
 0�����.

;���
:���������	�
:��������	
$
0;::&
���	��
���)�-����
��	��

���
%��

���������� 



�%�
 ���������
 �������.
 1--����
 �����	��5
 	�
 �������
 	�
 ����������

(�����)�=�
 ��8���	
 -��
 �����-���	���
 ��
 
��	%
 �������.��%���A�

����������	
 �	��	�.��
 ���	��������
 )%�	%��
 ���)�-����
 ��	��
 %��
 ����

��������
��
	%���

0;::
���
�����8���	��
������	��
��
	%���
;����
���� 




�� 
 B�����.
 ���	����
 ��	��
 -��
 ����������	
 )��
 ��
 �����
 -��
 ���
 �����

��	%���	��� 





������
 

��
 �������.�
 4��	%���
 B���.�
 +��	
 ���
 ����
 ����������.
 	%�

��������
�������.�

������
���5

	�	���



��� 
 C����	��5
 	�
 ����
 ��
 �����������=
 ��������	�	����
 ��.�����.


@����������=
	�
���������	�

���
1--����� 




Page 7



����������	
����

���	���

��������		����

���
 ��������
��

��	�����
����












�




��������
 #�������	�	����
 ��
 
��	%
 �������.��%���=�
 �����������
 ���-	

�%��.��.

�%�����
$2���
����&



�� 
 �%�
�������
������	��
��
�	�
�)�
�����������
���-	
�%��.��.

�%�����
��


*���%�:����
 ���� 
 
 ��	����
 ��.�����.
 �������.�=�
 �)�
 ���-	
 �%��.��.


�%������
 	%�
 ��,	
 �	�.�
 �-
 ����������	
 �-
 	%�
 �������	�

<�-���	���	���
;���
�������%
-��
�������.�
)����
��
	�5��
	�
D
1�	����

����
+���������	

���	���
�����		�� 


� 
 <	
)��
��	��
	%�	
�
�%��.��.
��%�����
�����
��	
��	
��������
��	��
-��
	%�

����
 	���
 �-
 ����������	
 ������
 �
 �������=�
 �������	��	���
 ���� 

0�)�����
 -��
�������.��
�
���.��
���
 ���.�
�%��.��.
 ��	��
��	
��	�%��

	��
 %�.%
 -��
 	%�
 ��)��
 	�
 ���
 �����
 �%��.��.
 ������
 )��
 ����������
 �

����
 ���������	�
 ����	���E
 �	
 ��		��
 ��������	�
 	%�
 ��,
 ���
 �������
 �-

�����
�������	�����
)�	%��
	%�
����	�����
�����
�������
��	�
�����
���
	%�

�������.
 ��	)���
 ����
 ���������
 �%����	����	���
 ���
 ������
 ����
 �%��	

���	����� �





�%�
�����		��
��������
��
�
��	��
	�
�
	�
�������
	%�
����������	���� 



�%�
+,���	���
����������
��������
	%�
����������	���� 




$��%����
 $�
 ��������
 ���%)��/
 -2
 �0�
 �5��+��3�
 
$+���%%$�
 1)�/
 )�2

���#���)��$��
7�)���/4

4�
���-���	�
�-
��	����	
)���
��������
��
	%�
+,���	���
���������� 


� !''!����

 ��$#$��/
 
$��+%�)��$�
 ���#$���
 �$
 
)*-��/&��0���


$+��2
 
$+���%8�
 ��)��
 	�)��#$��
 ���)��&2
 �$�
 
)*-��/&�
 ��/
 �$+�0


)*-��/&��0���



�)����
�$�
������$�

�%�
��	�
��������

��	%
�������.��%���
���	���	
�������
���
�������.��%���

����	�
�������
%���
�
%��	���
�-
9���	
)��5��.
��
�������.
��		����
���	��������

��
 �������5��. 
 :�
 ���	
 �-
 	%�
 ��	�
 	�
 �������	��
 	%�
 	%���
 ��������
 %���

�.����
 	�
 )��5
 ���������	�����
 ���
 ��
 ��������
 ��
 ��)
 �����
 �����
 ���
 �

	�������	
 �	��	�.�
 -��
 	%�
 �������.�
 ���� 
 �%��
 �������%
 )���
 ������
 	%�	

��������������
 ������
 ���
 �������	
 )����
 ��		���
 ���
 ���������
 ��
 �

������	��	
���
9��������
������ 



�%�
��	�
�������
������%��
�	�
;����
����
��
�7
2���
���� 
1�
	%�
����
����

�������.��%���
 ����	�
 �������
 ������%��
 �	�
 ���-	
 ��������	
 
	��	�.�
 -��

�������.�
���

��	%
�������.��%��� 


Page 8



����������	
����

���	���

��������		����

��!
 ��������
��

��	�����
����












!




<�
���������.
	%�
���-	
�	��	�.��
	%�
5��
�����
-��
	%�
��	�
�������
��
	�
������

	%�	
	%�
���-	
�	��	�.�
��-���	�
	%�
�	��	�.��
	�������	
������	����
-��
�������.�

���
 	%�
������.����
���
%����
������
 	%�
 ��������	�	���
�-
 	%�
��	�
�������

���

��	%
�������.��%���=�
�����
����� 



�%�
1--����=�
�����	
��������
��������	�	����
	�
	%�
���-	
��������	


	��	�.�
 -��
 �������.�
 ���
 
��	%
 �������.��%���
 $:������,
 :&
 -��

����������
 	�
 �������.��%���
 ����	�
 �������
 -����)��.
 ������
 �	���
 �	

����������	
����

���	���

��������		�� 



������$�
$�
�5��+��3�

$+���%%$�
�$�
�%)����&
)�/

%�*)��


0)�&�

:.����
	%�
��������	�	����
	�
	%�
���-	
��������	

	��	�.�
-��
�������.�
���


��	%
 �������.��%���
 ��	
 ��	
 ��
 :������,
 :
 �-
 	%�
 1--����=�
 �����	�
 ����

��������	�
 -���
 ��
 
��	�����
 ��

�E
 ���
 	%�	
 	%���
 ���
 �����		��
 	�

�������.��%���
����	�
�������
��
�������.�
��	�
�������=�
-�����
��������

	�
	%�
������	�	��� 



��)�$�
�$�
�0�
������$�

:�
��	
��	
��
	%�
1--����=�
�����	 



��2
�%����)��3�
�#��$��

$���/���/
)�/
��6����/

4�	
���������� 



���+���2

$���/��)��$��

�%�
�����		��
��������
�
�����	
-���
	%�
0���
�-
�������.

������� 



�%�
�����		��
����
	%�
-����)��.
������	�
��
��������
	�
	%�
�����	"




� 
 :.����
 )�	%
 �	�	����	�
 ��
 @� �
 3������
 ������	�
 1�
 �%�
 
	��	�.�

�������	=
 	%�	
 	%�
 ��������	
 
	��	�.�
 )��
 ������	�����
 ���
 ��8�����

-��	%��
��	����
��.�����.
������������	� 


�� 
 @3������
������	�
 <�
#���	���
��
������.="

	��	�.��
���	��
������
	�

��
 .��		��
 ���
 ����	����� 
 �%��
 �������
 �8�����
 	�
 ��%�����
 -��	
 ���

�������
���	��


��� 
 @3������
 ������	�
 <�
 #���	���
 ��
 :��
 F����	��
 4����
 :��
 4�������

<�����="
 �%�
 ��������	
 
	��	�.�
 ��������
 ��	
 	�
 %���
 ����	�-���

��.��.�	��
 ���
 ���	��
 ��
 ���.������
 �������� 
 �%�
 ��	�
 �������
 �%����

������������
 ��5
 	%�
 ����	�
 �������
 	�
 �����)
 ��	)��5
 ������	�
 -��
 ���

�������� 


Page 9



����������	
����

���	���

��������		����

��G
 ��������
��

��	�����
����












G


�� 
 @
��	���
� 
�%�

	��	�.�
:������%="

�����	��
	%�
;�)
+�������
H���
��

����������
 ��	
 ���.%	
 �����-���	���
 %�)
 ���
 ���5
 ����	���
 )����
 ��

���	��.���%��
-���
�	%��
����	���
	�
	%�
���� 


� 
 � 
�%�
��������	

	��	�.�"
�%�

	��	�.�
�%����
��	
����%���5�
-��
%�.%

8����	�
���
���	���
���%
��
-��8�����
���
������	�����	� 


�� 
 ����������
(�����)�
��5��
�-
	%�
�����		��
������	��
	%�
����
���--��


�%���
 �,	������ 
 �%�
 +,���	���
 ����������
 ����
 %�
 ������	��
 	%�

����	�
 �������
 �����	�.�	��.
 ���������
 ����.
 	%�
 ������
 �������
 ���

���9��	
	�
������	�	��� 



��� 
 ����������
 #���
 ����
 	%�	
 ���	���
 � ��
 �-
 	%�
 ��������	
 
	��	�.�

��������
 	�
 ��
 �
 �%��.�
 �-
 �����	���
 ��.�����.
 ����	���	
 ���5��.
 ���

���	������
 ���5��.
 I���� 
 �%�
 ������
 ������	��
 �������)��
 ����	���	

���5��.
���
���	������
���5��.
I�����
��	
��������
	�
��������
����)��.

	%��
��
-�	��� 
�%�
0���
�-
�������.

�������
�����	��5
	�
���%�����

	%�
 ����
 -��
 ������	�	���
 ��
 	%���
 ������ 
 :
 �	�.��
 ��������	�	���

)����
��
�������
�-
��%����
)���
��������	��
	�
�������
	%�
�����	
�-

	%���
��������
��
��	�
	��--��
-��) 




<�
 ��������
 	�
 *������=
 8���	����
 	%�
 0���
 �-
 �������.
 
�������
 ����
 	%�

-����)��."



3������
������	�
<�
#���	���
��
������.




� 
 �%�
 �������.�
 ��	�
 ��������
 )��
 �
 �������	�
 �-
 ������	�
 -���

�������
 �--����� 
 �%�
 ��������
 �����
 ��
 �������
 	�
 ��	
 .���	��

���%����
��
������
	�������	
	�
�������.�
�
�����
�%�-	
�)��
-���
����

	�
 �	%��
 -����
 �-
 ������
 	�������	
 $��	
 9��	
 ��������&
 )%��
 ����	��.

�������.� 
 <�
 �--��	
 	�
 ������	
 	%�
 ����	�
 �������
 �������.����	
 �-

�����
�%�-	 





��	���
� 
�%�

	��	�.�
:������%




�� 
 �%�
0���
�-
�������.

�������
�����	��5
	�
�����-�
�����
�--��	��
��
	%�

;�)
+�������
H���
���--��
*���.����	

�%���
��
	%�
+��	
:��� 

%�

����
 	%�	
 ;�)
 +�������
 H���
 )����
 �����
 ���	
 �-
 	%�
 ��	��
 ��	
 ����

�����
)����
��
�,���	�
���%
��
��	�����
���	�� 




� 
�%�
��������	

	��	�.�



��� 
 0�����.
 ����������	�
 ���
 .��)	%
 �����
 )����
 ����-�	
 -���
 �������


�����
 ���	�� 
 �%��
 �����
 ����
 	�
 �
 �%��.�
 ��
 ��%������
 )%���
 ������

-�������
������.
	�
)��5
���	���
�-
������. 


Page 10



����������	
����

���	���

��������		����

��?
 ��������
��

��	�����
����












?




! 
�%�
0�.%
;����
���.������/��5��.
���
������.




�� 
 �%�
�����		��
�.����
���
���
	�
���
	%�
-����)��.
)�����."





J
$+%/
��������
 	%�
�������
�-
���
���5��.
 ��
�����
 	�
 �������
	%�
��	�

�����
 ��	)��5
 ��
 �����
 ���%
 ��
 ;���-����
 #����
 ����
 #���
 ���

�������.�
#���K 




�%�
 0���
 �-
 �������.
 
�������
 �����	��5
 	�
 �������	�
 �
 ����
 �-
 	%�
 ��	�

�������
��������
�������	
�%�)��.
��������	�
��
	���5��
�%��.��
�����

��
��

�
������	�E
-��
�%���
���

��5��
��.�
�--
�����
	�
���������� 





�%�
�����		��
 ��������
��
�
 ��	��
 	�
�
 	�
�������
 	%�
 ����������	���
��

��������
���9��	
	�
�����)
�-
-����
��������
)�����.
��
�%���
���

��5�� 



�%�
+,���	���
����������
��������
	%�
����������	��� 




$��%����
 $�
 ��������
 ���%)��/
 -2
 �0�
 �5��+��3�
 
$+���%%$�
 1)�/
 )�2

���#���)��$��
7�)���/4

4�
���-���	�
�-
��	����	
)���
��������
��
	%�
+,���	���
���������� 








�%�
���	��.
�����
�	
! �!
��











����




Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



 

 
Report Page No: 1 

 

 

Cambridge City Council Item  

 

To: Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate 
Change: Councillor Tim Ward 

Report by: Head of Planning Services 

Relevant scrutiny 
committee:  

Development Plan Scrutiny Sub- 
Committee 

05/11/2013 

Wards affected: All Wards 
 
Statement of Community Involvement Update 2013 
 
Key Decision 
 
YES 

  
1. Background 
 

1.1 It is a statutory requirement (Section 18 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended)) for the Council to 
set out how it will consult the public on planning matters. This is 
normally set out in a document entitled ‘Statement of Community 
Involvement’ (SCI). The Council adopted its first SCI in April 
2007. Whilst there are no fixed legal deadlines for refreshing an 
SCI, it is important the Council reviews this important document 
from time to time in order to confirm its approach and 
commitment to community involvement in planning. 

 

1.2 A review is also considered useful at this point as a result of 
recent changes to the planning system as a result of legislative 
changes.  

 

 
2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 This report is being submitted to the Development Plan Scrutiny 
Sub Committee for prior consideration and comment.  The 
Committee is advised to recommend that the Executive 
Councillor for Planning and Climate Change: 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 13



 

 
Report Page No: 2 

a) Adopt the content of the Statement of Community Involvement 
2013 and bring it into immediate effect. 
 

 
3. Statement of Community Involvement 
 
3.1 The Council must set out a clear approach on planning matters. 

Supporting this,  the Statement of Community Involvement seeks 
to ensure that: 

 
§ The public has full and up to date knowledge of the 

planning process and knows exactly how and when it can 
get involved; 
 

§ Officers prepare plans and deal with planning 
applications, in the knowledge that they are being 
prepared in accordance with Members’ wishes with 
respect to public engagement and consultation; and 
 

§ Members have confidence that a robust, fair and 
consistent process is in place. 

 

3.2 The Council’s first Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 
was adopted in April 2007. Production of an SCI is a requirement 
of the Planning and Compulsory Act 2004 (as amended). 
 

3.3 The revised SCI (Appendix A) incorporates changes in 
Government legislation, updating regulations and procedures 
where necessary. 
 

3.4 It will be a key document to support our consultation approach for 
the completion and subsequent implementation of the Cambridge 
Local Plan 2014, other supporting policy documents and the 
consideration of planning applications. 
 

3.5 In addition, the Localism Act 2011 has necessitated some further 
changes to the document to ensure our local approach 
complements the legal framework. 
 

3.6 In summary the key changes made since the SCI 2007 was 
adopted, include: 
 

§ A change of style and format, for ease of use 
§ An update of relevant current legislation 
§ An update on consultation processes  

 

Page 14



 

 
Report Page No: 3 

 
4. Conclusions and Next Steps 
 
4.1 There is no legal requirement for the revision of the SCI itself to 

be subject to public consultation. The 2007 SCI received a total 
of 19 representations when consulted upon during its 
preparation. If the committee considers that a consultation period 
is appropriate, this can be undertaken. Additional changes may 
be made following the consultation, whereby the SCI will be 
subject to final approval and adoption at a subsequent 
committee. 

 
5.       Implications 
 
(a) Financial Implications 
 
5.1 None directly. However the SCI commits the Council to certain 

‘service standards’ in how it undertakes its local planning 
authority functions. However, the standards largely confirm 
current Council practice, so there are no new significant costs as 
a result of SCI commitments. 

 
(b) Staffing Implications 
 
5.2 There are no direct staffing implications arising from this report. 
 
(c) Equal Opportunities Implications 
 
5.3 There are no direct equal opportunities implications arising from 

this report, community engagement is a key part of the planning 
function already. 

 
(d) Environmental Implications 
 
5.4 There are no direct environmental implications arising from this 

report.   
 
(e) Consultation 
 
5.5 If it is considered that public consultation is appropriate, then the 

consultation on the revised SCI will follow the committee’s 
endorsement of the document for consultation. The consultation 
and communications arrangements for the SCI would follow the 
council’s Code for Best Practice on Consultation and Community 
Engagement. 

Page 15



 

 
Report Page No: 4 

 
(f) Community Safety 
 
5.6 There are no direct community safety implications arising from 

this report. 
 
6.   Background papers 
 

 

These background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report: 
 

• Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as 
amended), which can be accessed at: 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/contents  

• Localism Act 2011, which can be accessed at: 
 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents/enact

ed  

• Code for Best Practice on Consultation and Community 
Engagement: 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/how-we-consult  

 
 
7. Appendices 
 

 

• Appendix A: Draft Statement of Community Involvement 
 

8. Inspection of papers 
 

 

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report 
please contact: 
 
Author’s Name: Frances Schulz 
Author’s Phone Number:  01223 457175 
Author’s Email:  frances.schulz@cambridge.gov.uk 
 

Page 16



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A:  

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY 

INVOLVEMENT

Page 17



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013  

 

 

 

Contents 
 

1. What is the Statement of Community Involvement? ....................................................... 1 

2. What is involved in the planning process?...................................................................... 2 

3. How can I get involved in the planning process? ............................................................ 3 

4. Planning for the future – the Cambridge Local Plan, Development Plan Documents and 

Supplementary Planning Documents .................................................................................... 4 

Introduction ....................................................................................................................... 4 

How will we consult? ......................................................................................................... 4 

How can I respond to consultations? ................................................................................. 6 

What happens after the consultation?................................................................................ 7 

5. Development Management – Planning Applications, Appeals and Enforcement ............ 8 

Introduction .................................................................................................................... 8 

How will we consult? ...................................................................................................... 9 

How can I respond to consultations? ............................................................................ 11 

What happens after the consultation? Decisions and committee meetings .................. 12 

Planning appeals ......................................................................................................... 13 

Planning Enforcement .................................................................................................. 13 

6. Monitoring and Review of the Statement of Community Involvement ........................... 15 

 

Page 18



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013 Page 1 

1. What is the Statement of Community Involvement? 
 

1.1. The Statement of Community Involvement explains how Cambridge City Council (the 

council) will consult and involve residents, business, community groups and 

interested parties in the planning process.  

1.2. All local planning authorities must prepare a Statement of Community Involvement 

(SCI) as defined by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (which 

received minor amendments through the Localism Act 2011). 

1.3. Section 18, sub section 2 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as 
amended) states that “The statement of community involvement is a statement of the 
authority’s policy as to the involvement…of persons who appear to the authority to 
have an interest in matters relating to development in their area.” 

 

1.4. Planning shapes the places where people live and work, so it is right that people 
should be able to take an active part in the process. Community involvement is vitally 
important to planning. It is also important that the community can be involved from 
the beginning of the process, identifying issues and debating options from the earliest 
stages. 

 

Page 19



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013 Page 2 

2. What is involved in the planning process? 
 

2.1. Most new buildings, major changes to existing buildings (including their use) or 

significant changes to the local environment need consent: this is known as planning 

permission. Without a planning system, anyone could construct buildings or use land 

in any way they wanted, no matter what effect this would have on other people in the 

area. 

2.2. Cambridge City Council is the local planning authority for Cambridge; planning 

applications are submitted to Cambridge City Council to be assessed. These 

applications could include house extensions, the construction of a new shopping 

centre, or a major development.  

2.3. Cambridgeshire County Council is also a local planning authority but deals 

specifically with plan-making in relation to minerals and waste management in 

Cambridgeshire, and the consideration of planning applications for minerals, waste 

and county council service developments e.g. schools. The county council produces 

its own Statement of Community Involvement for this purpose. 

2.4. When determining a planning application, local planning authorities must have regard 

to their Local Plan. 

2.5. According to English law, a Local Plan - which may be a single document or a series 

of documents - must be prepared; these documents contain planning policies and a 

policies map which outlines how planning should be managed in the area and 

provides considerations which must be taken into account when determining planning 

applications. 

2.6. In addition to Local Plans, the Localism Act 2011 has now introduced the concept of 

neighbourhood planning. This means that communities can prepare their own 

planning policies for their area. The city’s approach to neighbourhood planning will be 

incorporated into a future update of the Statement of Community Involvement. 

Page 20



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013 Page 3 

3. How can I get involved in the planning process? 
 

3.1. There are many ways that you can get involved in the planning process, for example: 

• Responding to consultations during the production of the Cambridge 
Local Plan, other development plan documents and supplementary 
planning documents; 

• Having your say on planning applications affecting your community; 

• Reporting planning control breaches (such as a neighbour building a large 
extension to their home without planning consent); 

• Getting involved with your local community to produce a neighbourhood 
plan; 

• Commenting on appeals relating to applications that have been refused 
by the council. 

 

3.2. Cambridge City Council has produced a Code of Best Practice on Consultation and 

Community Engagement 2011, which establishes clear principles to guide 

Cambridge City Council in ensuring a structured and proportionate approach to all 

consultations. The Statement of Community Involvement follows these principles and 

the Code of Best Practice’s requirements of: 

• Openness 

• Accountability 

• Accessibility and Inclusiveness 

• Transparency 
 
3.3. The following sections explain in more detail how you can get involved. 

Page 21



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013 Page 4 

4. Planning for the future – the Cambridge Local Plan, 

Development Plan Documents and Supplementary 

Planning Documents 
 

Introduction 
 

4.1. The Cambridge Local Plan 2014 will set out the planning framework to guide the 

future development of Cambridge. It will contain the spatial strategy for the 

development of the city, site-specific allocations and development management 

policies. It will be complemented by other development plan documents which 

currently include the North West Cambridge Area Action Plan, the Cambridge East 

Area Action Plan and the Cambridgeshire County Council’s Cambridgeshire and 

Peterborough Minerals and Waste Core Strategy (July 2011) and the Site Specific 

Proposals Plan (February 2012) Development Plan Documents (the county council 

produces its own Statement of Community Involvement for this).   

4.2. Other planning policy documents may include supplementary planning documents; 

these documents are designed to support and add more guidance to policies in the 

Local Plan. 

4.3. Sustainability Appraisals and Habitats Regulations Assessments may have to be 

undertaken as part of the preparation of a development plan document or 

supplementary planning document (where relevant) and these documents will be 

published in tandem with the relevant planning documents. 

4.4. Information regarding the Local Plan timetable and the development of other 

development plan documents can be found in the council’s Local Development 

Scheme document, which can be found online at: 

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/local-development-scheme-and-latest-information  

 

How will we consult? 
 

4.5. The council must conform to certain rules and regulations set by Government to 

demonstrate how they must consult. The Town and Country Planning (Local 

Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 list ‘specific consultation bodies’ that we must 

consult with. These are:  

• The Coal Authority; 

• The Environment Agency; 

• English Heritage (Historic Buildings and Monuments Commission for 
England); 

• Marine Management Organisation; 

• Natural England; 

• Network Rail Infrastructure Limited; 

• The Highways Agency; 

• Adjoining Local Planning Authorities; 

Page 22



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013 Page 5 

• Relevant telecommunications companies; 

• The Primary Care Trust or relevant successor body; 

• Relevant electricity and gas companies; 

• Sewerage and water undertakers. 
 

4.6. We are also required to consult any ‘general consultation bodies’ which may be 

affected by the contents of the document being produced. These include 

• voluntary bodies, some or all of whose activities benefit any part of the 
council's area; 

• bodies which, in the council's area, represent the interests of different 
needs groups. 

 

4.7. The council will also consult ‘other consultation bodies’ which they consider to be 

appropriate to planning and who have not fallen into the above categories, these may 

include: 

• Residents’ Associations; 

• Developers and agents; 

• Landowners; 

• Special interest groups; 

• Environmental groups; 

• A selection of businesses or business networks; 

• Educational establishments. 
 

4.8. The council is keen to involve under represented or hard to reach groups of people. 

This may include the following:  

• Black and Minority Ethnic communities (BME);   

• Women;  

• Disabled people;  

• Lesbian, gay, bisexual and trans-gendered communities (LGTB);  

• Children, young and older people; and  

• Faith and belief groups.   
 

4.9. Consultation on planning policy documents will normally be undertaken for a 

minimum of 6 weeks. 

4.10. We also hold a database of names and addresses of residents and stakeholders who 

have been asked to be kept informed of any consultations that may come forward. An 

individual or organisation may request to be added or removed from the database at 

any time. At the end of a major plan production phase (such as a Local Plan), we 

may update the database by deleting those who appear to us, were only interested in 

the production of that particular plan. This prevents unwanted and costly mail being 

sent to people. 

4.11. The methods that we employ to notify and involve you in the consultation process are 

listed below. Methods may vary depending on what document is being produced, but 

some methods may include: 

• Letters or emails to respondents to previous consultations; 

Page 23



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013 Page 6 

• Publicising the consultation on our Development Planning Policy 
webpages; 

• Distributing leaflets to key locations;  

• Posting information on our blog: 
http://cambridgelocalplan.wordpress.com/  

• Issuing a public notice in the local newspaper; 

• Issuing press releases and articles in Cambridge Matters; 

• Hosting exhibitions within the city; 

• Putting up posters in key locations around the city; 

• Pre-consultation workshops or one-to-one meetings with interested 
parties. 

 
4.12. The Localism Act 2011 introduced a new section (33A) into the Planning and 

Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended), requiring local planning authorities, 
such as Cambridge City Council, to formally co-operate with neighbouring authorities 
and other bodies when they prepare their plans and proposals. Likewise, 
neighbouring authorities have to co-operate with the City Council when it prepares 
plans. 
 

4.13. Cambridge City Council will seek to work closely and seek opportunities for cross 
boundary working with its neighbouring authorities. This will be particularly important 
with regards to South Cambridgeshire District Council where the plans and policies of 
the neighbouring authority will have a significant impact. 

 
 

How can I respond to consultations? 
 

4.14. There are many ways in which you can respond to consultations on the Cambridge 

Local Plan and other development plan documents and supplementary planning 

documents. Consultations will be publicised on our Development Planning Policy 

webpages and you can respond in the following ways: 

• By using our online consultation system http://cambridge.jdi-
consult.net/ldf/ (this is our preferred means of contact). Please note that 
this on-line system might not be used for all consultations e.g. for very 
technical policy documents, where only limited and specialist comments 
are likely to be received.  

• By filling in a paper representation form and posting it to us at: Planning 
Policy, Cambridge City Council, PO Box 700, Cambridge, CB1 OHJ 

• By emailing us at: policysurveys@cambridge.gov.uk 

• If you have any issues with any of the above you can also phone Planning 
Policy on 01223 457000, where a member of staff will be able to assist 
you. 
 

4.15. A copy of the consultation document will also be available to view at the Customer 

Service Centre in Mandela House, Regent Street. In some instances, further copies 

of the relevant documents may be deposited at libraries within Cambridge. 

4.16. All consultees and interested parties will be encouraged to use the council’s website 

for viewing or downloading documents, although it is appreciated that this is not 

appropriate for everyone.  

4.17. All comments received will be published on the online consultation system (although 

addresses and contact details will be removed), they may also be repeated in public 

Page 24



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013 Page 7 

documents, such as within the committee pages of our website. Comments will 

require a 100 word summary and you should only include information that you are 

happy to be made available on the internet. All comments received during the 

Proposed Submission consultation of a development plan document will also be read 

by a Planning Inspector, who may want to contact you for further information. 

4.18. Copies of the document will be made available to purchase and prices will be 

displayed on the appropriate webpage, or be made available on request. 

4.19. We very much appreciate your time and effort in submitting comments on our draft 

policy documents. They greatly help us shape and refine our policies. We will try to 

amend our documents to meet your requirements as best we can, but competing 

views or national policies may prevent us from meeting requests. 

4.20. We will also publish on our website a report summarising the comments made, so 

you can see what others thought of the draft plans and proposals 

What happens after the consultation? 
 

4.21. After the final stage of consultation of a development plan document (such as the 

Local Plan), the document, consultation responses and the evidence base used to 

inform the creation of the planning document are submitted to the Secretary of State. 

An independent planning inspector will then carry out an examination of the 

document considering the views of interested people. The inspector will decide who 

and how people get involved in the examination stage. If an inspector is happy the 

Plan (with or without changes), the council is then able to adopt it. For more 

information visit the Planning Advisory Service webpages: 

http://www.pas.gov.uk/pas/aio/25131 

4.22. After consultation on a supplementary planning document, submission to the 

Secretary of State is not required. Instead the council will consider comments, amend 

the document and then adopt it. More detailed guidance on the legal requirements 

and process can be found via the Planning Advisory Service webpages: 

http://www.pas.gov.uk/pas/core/page.do?pageId=469626 

 

Page 25



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013 Page 8 

5. Development Management – Planning Applications, 

Appeals and Enforcement 
 

Introduction 

 

5.1.  There are three main types of planning application, which are listed below. 

Additionally, conservation area consent and listed building consent applications may 

be required in some instances. 

5.1.1. Outline Applications – These allow for a decision on the general principles 

of how a site can be developed. As a minimum outline applications must 

include information on: the approximate location of buildings, routes and open 

spaces included in the development, the upper and lower limit for the height, 

width and length of each building included in the development proposed, the 

area or areas where access points to the development proposed will be 

situated1. After an Outline Application is granted permission, one or more 

Reserved Matters Applications must be approved, before development can 

commence. 

5.1.2. Reserved Matters Applications – These applications follow on from outline 

applications and include the detailed plans, drawings and information for all 

(or part) of the site, providing a more comprehensive proposal for the site. 

Development cannot begin on-site until all reserved matters for all (or part) of 

the site have been approved.  

5.1.3. Full Applications – These applications provide all the detailed information, 

strategies and plans for the development of a site in one application. 

5.2. If you are unsure whether you need planning permission, or what type of permission 

you should apply for, the council has a Planning Expert System, which provides 

advice: https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/planning-expert-system . Alternatively you can 

talk to a Duty Officer who can provide you with advice and guidance relating to 

simple enquiries such as: 

• proposals relating to works to individual homes, such as: 

• the erection of an extension (including a conservatory); 

• a garage or outbuilding; 

• new or altered access; 

• dormer windows or roof alterations; 

• a wall or fence; 

• a satellite dish; 

• conversion of a garage; 

• new windows or doors; 

• a new porch. 

• the completion of planning application forms and plans that need to be 
presented with an application 

                                                
1
 Required through The Town and Country Planning Act (Development Management Procedures) 

(England) Order 2010 (as amended) 

Page 26



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013 Page 9 

• the planning process and how planning applications are assessed 

• conditions that have been attached to approved planning permissions. 
 

5.3. Duty Planning Officers are available from 10.30am to 3pm every weekday at the 

Customer Service Centre at Mandela House, Regent Street with no appointment 

necessary, meeting time is limited to 15 minutes. You can also contact them via 

telephone on: 01223 457000 (https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/duty-planning-officer-

advice ) 

5.4. The council also now offers pre-application advice; this is the phase before a 

planning application is formally submitted. It helps the applicant and the council to 

understand a scheme in its early stages of development. No decision is made at this 

stage but discussions may result in improvements and alterations to a scheme before 

the application is submitted, enabling a quicker processing of the application. You 

may be charged for this service, more information can be found on our website: 

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/pre-application-advice or by contacting the Duty 

Officer. 

How will we consult? 

 

5.5. The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 
(Amendment) Order 2013 amends The Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 and sets out the minimum 
requirements for publicising and consulting on planning applications. 
 

5.6. A community or individual can comment (make representations) on any planning 
application. The level and extent of consultation and publicity will vary depending on 
the size, scale, location and nature of the proposed development. However, all 
planning proposals have the potential to raise issues and be sensitive - publicity and 
consultation is therefore an integral part of the planning process. 

 
5.7. Planning applications are public documents and as such, can be viewed by visiting 

the Customer Service Centre or by visiting the Public Access system: 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/monitor-an-application. A weekly list of planning 
applications is also published on this site. 

 
5.8. Consultation on planning applications will take place with both statutory and non-

statutory consultees. Those consulted will vary depending upon the nature of the 
proposal and location. Statutory Consultees are set out in Schedule 5 of The Town 
and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 
as amended. Non-statutory consultees are chosen at the discretion of the council. 

 
5.9. Some applications will require that a site notice is displayed, these notices will be 

displayed on or near to the site which is applying for planning permission. Details of 
the application and how to find out more, including a relevant website will be 
displayed on the notice. 

 
5.10. Planning applications are publicised as illustrated in Figure 1. 
 

 

 

Page 27



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013 Page 10 

Figure 1: Publicity for Planning Applications 

Nature of 

development 
Publicity and 

consultation timescale 

Additional publicity (at 
discretion of planning 

officer) 

Major development & 

applications of wider 

concern 

• Advertisement in local 
newspaper* (21 days) and; 

• Site Notice (21 days) & 
neighbour notification (21 days) 

 

 

Minor development • Neighbour notification (21 
days)  
 

Site notice if application is of 
wider concern 

Listed Building 

application 

• Advertisement in local 
newspaper (21 days) and; 

• Site notice (21 days) 

Neighbour notification 
(dependent on site situation) 

Development 

affecting the 

character or 

appearance of a 

Conservation Area 

• Advertisement in local 
newspaper (21 days) and; 

• Site notice (21 days) 

Neighbour notification 
(dependent on site situation) 

Conservation Area 

Consent application 

• Advertisement in local 
newspaper (21 days) and; 

• Site notice (21 days) 

Neighbour notification 
(dependent on site situation) 

Development 

affecting the setting of 

a listed building 

• Advertisement in local 
newspaper (21 days) and; 

• Site notice (21 days) 

Neighbour notification 
(dependent on site situation) 

Applications 

accompanied by an 

Environmental 

Statement 

• Advertisement in local 
newspaper (14 days) and; 
Site notice (21 days) 

Neighbour notification 
(dependent on site situation) 

Applications which 

are a departure from 

the Development Plan 

• Advertisement in local 
newspaper (21 days) and; 

• Site notice (21 days) 

Neighbour notification 
(dependent on site situation) 

Applications which 

affect a public right of 

way 

• Advertisement in local 
newspaper (14 days) and; 

• Site notice (21 days) 

Neighbour notification 
(dependent on site situation) 

All other planning 

applications 

• Neighbour notification (21 
days) 
 
(Site notice can be used but 
only if neighbour letters alone 
would be insufficient) 

Neighbour notification 
(dependent on site situation) 

* The council automatically give 21 days for all press advertisements. 

5.11. There are applications that fall outside the category of a major development but that 
are likely to be of ‘wider concern’ and as such may warrant an advertisement in 
addition to the possibility of a site notice or neighbour notification.  These cases will 

Page 28



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013 Page 11 

normally have one or more of the following impacts associated with them, with the 
potential to affect more than just the adjoining properties: 
 

• Where the development will affect nearby property by causing noise, 
smell, vibration, dust or other nuisance; 

• Attracts crowds, traffic and noise into a generally quiet area; 

• Cause activity and noise during unsocial hours; 

• Introduce significant change e.g. particularly tall buildings; 

• Result in serious loss of light or privacy to more than just the adjoining 
properties; 

• Affect the setting of an ancient monument or archaeological site; 

• Affect trees subject to tree preservation orders. 
 

Planning staff will use their discretion and judgement in determining the need to 

publicise applications of wider concern. 

 
5.12. Applications such as CLUED – Certificate of Lawfulness of Lawfulness for Existing 

Use or Development, are not required to meet the publicity and consultation 
requirements.  
 

How can I respond to consultations? 

 

5.13. At the beginning of the process, all consultees, including statutory bodies with an 
interest in the application, have 21 days in which to respond. Sometimes these 
responses mean that the case officer (the planning officer who is dealing with the 
planning application) needs to contact the applicant to request more information or to 
suggest amendments. The minimum statutory requirements are set out in the Town 
and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 
(as amended). If the application is amended either before a decision is made or after 
it has been approved, consultees may need to be re-notified.  
 

5.14. Comments on planning applications can be made in the following ways: 
 

• Online through our Public Access System 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/monitor-an-application. This is our 
preferred means of contact and your comments will be instantly recorded 
on our system; 

• By emailing us at: applicationsupport@cambridge.gov.uk;  

• By writing to us at: Application Support, Planning Services, Cambridge 
City Council, PO Box 700, Cambridge, CB1 OHJ. 

 
Comments received via email or post must clearly state the application reference that 
you are commenting on, your name and full postal address. 

 
5.15. Representations must be on planning grounds.  Representations that are not on 

planning grounds will be reported, but cannot be taken into account in the 
determination of the planning application.  Advice on what constitutes planning 
grounds is contained in the neighbour notification letter, although the list of matters is 
not exclusive.  If you are in any doubt about whether what you wish to say is a 
planning consideration, contact the planning case officer who is dealing with the 
planning application, whose name will be on correspondence and on the application 
details on the council’s website. 
 

Page 29



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013 Page 12 

5.16. Representations should be clear and succinct, drawing out the key issues and salient 

points that you wish to make.  The results of any such consultation will be reported 

and taken into account in decisions made by, and on behalf of, the council.  

5.17. In addition the council operates a Development Control Forum, this is a meeting 
where petitioners can present their views to councillors, planning officers and the 
applicant, some weeks before a planning application is finally determined. The aim of 
the forum is to allow early discussion of the planning issues raised by petitioners and 
to explore the scope for building consensus and for resolving concerns. It is an 
informal meeting and the forum does not determine the application. A formal 
committee ultimately determines the application. 
 

5.18. In addition, the council runs the following panels and groups, which may provide input 
into the determination of planning applications.  

 

• Disability Consultative Panel 

• Conservation and Design Panel 

• Public Art Steering Group 
 

5.19. More information on the Development Control Forum or the panels and groups 
mentioned above can be found by visiting the councils committee pages 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/about-council-committees-and-meetings or by 
contacting the democratic services team: 
 

• By email: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk  

• By phone 01223 457013 

• In writing: Committee Managers, Cambridge City Council, The Guildhall, 
Cambridge, CB2 3QJ. 

 

What happens after the consultation? Decisions and committee meetings 

 

5.20. Planning Officers will use the council’s development plan documents (such as the 
Cambridge Local Plan), supplementary planning documents, responses from the 
consultation and any other relevant guidance both at national and local level to 
determine the planning application. Officers do not generally reply to individual letters 
and objections, but will address the key issues and comments in their report. 
 

5.21. All comments and correspondence received on planning and tree work applications 
are open to public inspection and will be published on public access as part of the 
online application file, they may also be repeated in public documents, such as within 
the committee pages of our website (https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/councillors-and-
committees ). Comments will be summarised within the case officer's report and you 
should only include information that you are happy to be made available over the 
internet (which means your information will be available worldwide). 

 

5.22. Prior to publication we will redact the sender's name, personal signatures, personal 
email addresses and personal telephone and mobile numbers. We will also redact 
any sensitive personal data, such as medical information. Applicants' names and 
addresses are published because they form part of the statutory planning register. 
For business letters, we only redact signatures. 

 

5.23. In the event of an appeal, your representations will be forwarded to the Planning 
Inspectorate (http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/planninginspectorate/) and 

Page 30



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013 Page 13 

the appellant. The Planning Inspectorate may publish appeal documentation, 
including copies of representations received, on the Planning Portal website. All 
information provided on your representation, including your name and address, will 
be published. If you object to publication in this way, please contact the Planning 
Inspectorate directly giving them details of the appeal reference number. 

 

5.24. Most minor applications are decided by officers under delegated powers and 
supported by a Principal Planning Officer. Councillors make decisions about 
applications that cannot be decided in this way, or may decide to ‘call in’ delegated 
applications for further scrutiny. 
 

5.25. The Planning Committee (which meets monthly) makes decisions about major 
applications while the four area committees (which meet every eight weeks) handle 
local applications. 
 

5.26. The council’s committee pages https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/councillors-and-
committees publish agendas and reports before the committee meetings and the 
meetings are open to the public. Members of the public who have submitted 
comments to the consultation will be notified in writing if they are able to speak at 
committee. If you wish to speak about a planning application at a committee meeting, 
you must already have submitted a written representation in relation to that 
application, and notify the committee manager that you wish to speak no later than 
midday on the working day preceding the meeting. More information is available at 
this address: https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/speaking-at-committee-meetings  
 

5.27. When a decision has been made, the council’s target is to send out notification letters 
to neighbours who commented on the application, within two days of the date of 
decision. Decision notices are also posted on the council’s Public Access System 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/monitor-an-application. 

 

Planning appeals 

 

5.28. If the person who applied for planning permission does not agree with the decision 
that the council has made to refuse their application (or attach conditions), they may 
lodge an appeal to the Planning Inspectorate. No one else has the right to appeal the 
decision. However, when an application has been appealed the council does inform 
all parties that objected during the application stage. The council advises of this as 
soon as it receives notification from the Inspectorate. All copies of letters and 
comments received during the application stage are also forwarded to the Planning 
Inspectorate. 
 

Planning Enforcement 

 
5.29. ‘Planning Enforcement’ is the term used to describe the processes involved in 

making sure people comply with planning law and the requirements of a planning 
permission. It does not involve consultation due to the confidentiality of on-going 
investigations. 
 

5.30. The majority of cases arise through referrals from the public, councillors and council 
officers. There is no public consultation on compliance cases; however, the council 
will ensure that the complainant is advised of the progress with investigations into 

Page 31



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013 Page 14 

alleged breaches of planning control and advised officer’s findings. Complaints are 
treated in the strictest of confidence. 
 

5.31. Where a breach of planning control is reported, an officer will investigate and assess 
the complaint to gather evidence and establish what, if any, the most appropriate 
course of action should be. Many investigations result in the submission of a planning 
application in an attempt to regularise a breach. When this is the case the community 
can become more involved in the same way as with any other planning application. If 
the breach cannot be regularised, the council will need to take formal enforcement 
action. For further information, contact Planning Enforcement. 
 

5.32. Alleged breaches of planning control can be reported by completing and submitting a 
confidential complaint via the following means: 
 

• By email: planningenforcement@cambridge.gov.uk 

• By telephone: 01223 457163 

• In writing: Planning Enforcement, Environment, Cambridge City Council, 
PO Box 700, Cambridge, CB1 0JH 

 

Page 32



STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 2013 Page 15 

6. Monitoring and Review of the Statement of Community 

Involvement 
 

6.1. This Statement of Community Involvement is expected to change over time as we 

learn from our efforts of involving people, and respond to any emerging guidance and 

changes in law. Its success will be monitored through the authority’s Annual 

Monitoring Report, which is normally published at the end of December/beginning of 

January each year. 

6.2. Any revisions the council makes to any of its statutory planning documents must go 

through the consultation procedures detailed in this document. The review process 

ensures the documents remain relevant and take into account the most up to date 

advice and guidance available. 

 

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Statement of Community Involvement
	STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT


